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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

DISTRICT OF OREGON 

DOMINIC ARTIS and DAMYEAN 
DOTSON, 
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V. 
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DECLARATION OF LISA THORNTON IN 
SUPPORT OF DEFENDANTS' MOTION TO 
DISMISS 

I, Lisa Thornton, hereby declare as follows: 

l. I am the Public Records Officer for the University of Oregon. I am a 

duly-authorized custodian at the University of Oregon of the attached records. I have the 

authority to certify the attached records. 

Page l - Declaration of Lisa Thornton in Support of Defendants' Motion to Dismissal 

70079748.1 
MILLE R NAS H GRAHA M & DUNN LLP 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 
TELEPHONE : SOJ . 224 . SIUM 

3400 US BA NCOR P TOWE R 
111 S . W. FIFTH AVENUE 

PORTLAND, OREGON Y720 4 

mailto:michelle.smigel@millernash.com
mailto:porter@millernash.com


2. The attached records are true copies of the records and were created at or 

near the time of the act, condition, or event described or referred to in them. 

3. The attached records were prepared or received and kept by the University 

of Oregon , or persons acting under its control, in the ordinary course of regularly conducted 

business. 

4. Attached as Exhibit A arc copies of plaintiffs' signed scholarships. 

5. Attached as Exhibit Bis a copy of' the text nf President Gottfredson's 

public statement made on May 9, 2014. 

6. Attached as Exhibit C is a copy of an e-mail sent by Greg Veralrud to 

Douglas Park on or around May 28, 2014, and a copy of'a "Special Choice Resolution Form" 

signed by Darnyean Dotson dated June l 9, 2014. 

7. Attached as Exhibit Dare copies of hearing decision letters from 

Sandy Weintraub to plaintiff Dominic Artis (with the subject "Regarding Case: 00516-003-

2014") and to plain ti ffDamyean Dotson (with the subject "Regarding Case: 00516-001-2014"), 

dated June 20, 20 14. 

8. Attached as Exhibit L are redacted copies of Artis's and Dotson's "Tort 

Claims Notices" dated October 8. 2014, and October 9. 20 l 4, respectively. 

Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § l 746, I declare under penalty of re1jury that the foregoing 

is true and correct. 
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EXECUTED on this d.. ~~-- day of May, 20 l 6. in Eugene, Oregon. 

iisa Thornton 

Declaration of Lisa Thornton in Su pron of Defendants' Motion to Dismiss 

\'111 .l.l'R NA SH Cil~ 1\ll 1\M & DLNN I.I.I' 
·\I IOlt:-Ol \ ~ \f I."\\\ 

I U f PJ1r1 N J .'i•Ji :;1 Y.:-!-':' 
lJ!•:; U:'. IJ,\,, l1RI' I 11\\ 'I k 

.;1 \ W l· lfl ll ,,\lM'I: 
l'CJKlL\><Jl.•quc ,<J ... 9 72 11.i 



• 

29 May 2013 

OREGOn 

__ Domin.ic_.L\t:l.is ·····-------

REDACTED 

Dear Dominic: 

This letter is to oflicinlly notify you that your University or Oregon athletic scholarship was renewed 
for the 2013-2014 academic year. Renewal is contingent upon normal academic progress towards 
graduation and continued eligibility as mandated by NCAA and Pac-I 2 regulations. Your athletic 
scholnrship will b0 as follows: 

Full athletic scholarship consisling of tuition and compulsory fees, a suhsis tencc grant covering 
the cost of room and board at campus rates, and th e provision of required course-related books. 

If you receive other coLmtnblc aid that incrcascs the value of the cquivalcncy (listed above) counting 
toward NC.I\/\ team financial aid limitations, your athletics scholarsh ip or other countable aid may be 
reduced or cancelled to maintain compliance with applicable NCAA regulations. If your athletics aid is 
less than the amount of your other countable aid, you may decline your athletics aid. 

Failure to adhere to University of Oregon, Athletic Department, or team rules may result in immediat<! 
termination of athletics aid. NC,.\A Byl:nv provisions applicable to your acceptance and retention of 
financial assistance are cited on the reverse side of this letter. 

Best wishes for an upcoming successful year. 

Cordially, 

Rob 1\lullens 
Director of Athletics 

Cf5-"ti<.·V><-? GA .'V-P~ 
.1'.a<,1cs 13rnoks 
Director of Financial Aid 

By signing and dati ng below, I, the individual this letter is addressing, hereby acknow ledge 
both !) receipt of this written notification on the date below <lllcl prior to July l , 2013 and 2) 
my understanding of the status nf rny athletics aid at the University of Oregon for the 20 13- 14 
academic vear. 

Signatuce o-~--···· __ -- -·-····· Datc:: _(p~}_13 ·-·----····-
-·-·---···-·- ----f---,-:r--·-····-···-----· 

/ 

Lem Ca"1"nova Athle1ic Center • 1121 Leo ~.ur :s PM Jcwa;1 • t:ugenc:. Orl:lqO" 91~0l ·SH3J • (541) ?46 .14a 1 fd.,; (54 1) 3··l6 -~031 
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pit Mtjff 

29 t\fay 2013 

OREGOn 

REIHCTED 

Dear Damyean: 

This lct1cr is to offic ially notify you that your Unin:rsity of Oregon athletic .scholarship was renewed 
for the 2013-2014 academic ye;ir. Rc:newal is contingent upon nonnal academ ic progress wwards 
graduation and continued d igibility as mandated by NCAA and P::c- 12 regulat ions. Yom athkt!t: 
scholarship will be ~is follo\\s: 

Full alhklic scholars hip consis ting of tuition and compulso ry fees, a subsistence grant covering 
the co~t of mom a nd board at campu s raft's, and the provision of required coursc-rclakcl books. 

If you receive other countable aid that int:reases 1he \'alue of the equiYa lency (lis ted abo \·e) counting 
toward NCAA team financial aid limitations, your athletics scholarship or other countable aid may be 
reduced or cancelled to maintain compliance wilh applicable NCAA regubtions. Lf your athletics aid is 
less than the amo unt or your other countable aid, you may decl ine your athletics aid . 

Failure to adhere to Universi ty or Orego n, Athletic Department. or team rules may resu lt in immedia1c 
tcm1ination of athletics aid. NCAA Bylaw provisions npplicablc 10 your acceptance and retention or 
financial assistance arc cited on the !'(.' \ 'crsc side of this letter . 

Best wishes for an upcoming successful year. 

u " 

Cord ially, 

Rob \follens 
Directo r of Athletics 

r'\.. /? ;_(/ 
~Ct.·:-~ \.{/.1 ( )~1. .!..,.,,.,...,,·l.A--
·:iimes Brooks 
Direcwr of Financial Aid 

By signing and dat ing below. I. 1hc indi vidual th is letter is addressing, hereby ackno wledge 
both I) receipt of this i.-\Tilten notification <m the dal, below and prior to Ju ly I. 20 l 3 nnd 2) 
my understanding of lhc status or my athletics aid Hf the University or Oregon for the 20 13-14 
academic year. 

Signa1t1r~ _ Dme: b-Zto-\3 

f>;::ut.!tJJ$i!J§!I§ • :1 #RE } t @# 1 '($ Mt 
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President Gottfredson's statement to media regarding sexual vio lence I President 

T~ie Office 01 tr·o 

President-.... ~ 

President Gottfredson's statement to 
media regarding sexual violence 

Page I of6 

Prcsiclcnr Gorrf1Pclson :node the fo!lovi;in.~~ store1nenr ot o prc.ss confcrt:nre :)n tt1e Clrivcrsiry of 
()r.,~gon rnmpu.'> coiled fc;r I I :00 o.m. PDT en Fririny, ivloy 9 .. 20 ! 4. Ful, Le>:l :;f t i ~e pr es;dent's 

Error setting up player: Missing license key 

0 

':)c:':<Ud l violence, a<:;salJl1, a,·,cJ ha ra :osni0'r1t havl? no nlace u 1 uur c~ rn p LJ:'.' or <-iriywr ;e··t:i in 

cu:· community. f\Jone. Ever. 
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President Gottfredson's statement to media regarding sexual violence I President Page 2 of6 

The tjf-'l~ of 1.:ehavior in the 

will not he wlerated. 

report re!easec1 this 1N2e:< is utterly and 

I uwiersu:1d 2nd ernp2tr1i;:e vvith tr1e our age rer21 ·········as J fatrH:J, I w2s Jt 

v;;·1at I read. As presicJ21·1t. r;f this 1miversicy. I a'n angry and cJisaripoin:ecJ ove· this 

profoundly incident. 

f\s you -<1cw. ther·e are ma·1y det.a:ls cf this case rhat. we c~nnc:. i.a1k abou .. 'Ne c:in 1101 

cfr:;cuss tr·e specifics of ti·1 is case, or Jny 01:l1cr case :::~JC.icTt:;. I kn 1-:ivv it:'s 

1'rusrrati""1g, anc: we woulcl li 1~e to ',ay rnore, but we an? r<Jl ~o vie al!'? rile aws li'kll 

a··e in place 10 pr~;tect srude·1i.s' ;:;rivacy or the r:gms of our student:s ····· t'\OE'.l the 
su: ·vi\d)~, 

We coopel'aced con1pletely vvich law e·1force"11211t. l he ~\)l 1 c.e Depann:ent 

1enuestecJ we not de anything that might r·inrJer their criminal 

inve'.ol io:1 mi·1Cluding then: ir: ,~ garne We 

rnrrplied fu with thar ;·equPSL ar'rl a::;::Yc:Jriately so. 

Th;:it c1oes not rr:ea: we dic.i nothing triat time. it si:n rneans triat we 

r-efrair:ed, at th:1 1·eqL1(,1st 1)f Fllger·e Pu' ice, frcrn <-1oir1g anyl11i·1g U1c:;1 have 

alert<:·d persons tile police t~JlcJ us riot to alert to the i nve~;tigat;on. n-irou13·1c<Jt, 

vve continued to fc1i low other stc•ps of our regU:ar process of investig&ion, <nd tu 

support as we do 'or- all such matters. 

We received uie police repon :Jn Ao(I 24. HE1t r:nab 1ed us tc ta L,e zicion wi~:lC::J: 

jeop2rdizing J 1frni1ul irive~;Ugation. l'Jot al l actior's t11e s1 ver t<:1kcs are 

d'sclosable. Howeve··, with the UD /\trletic DPparw1er·1t, we rook the 

JC(On: n~e three s:udent-atf'!letes 'vVC'C SJSpcndec 

basketball at Or·cgc'l ag;:;1r~. 

VVe ar:c we w II re pur·sue al: 

cle;:ir, esc.::1b1·s;1eo pclicies .:-inc p-otocols that we toilcw ,rail such cc:ses. 

Wrif"1 anc ,f we car1 ::;han' ,1clcJticna r ir::'orrnation. i ib:o.urc ycJ1_, we w.11. 
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President Gottfredson's statement to media regarding sexual violence I President Page 3 of6 

Ir tl1e it is rriy great hope ~ll<:it we, J::. a univr.:rsity CO'il"LJ'lity, wi I tal,e this 

to address the broader iss.Jes cf ~,exua l vio 'enc-e a··1d l'ar·ass'11ent directy, 

oper·ly. and d0c1sive ly. 

Over ~he e;asi: few I r"kivr.: t:dkec wiu1 si:udcms all .:Kross ca1rpus, i:o r1ca' tl~ei• 

and ccmcerr'>. ::11?rnbers of ii'\' UO C::iali1 ic;1 le r=r cl 

Se\ual and talk about how the C3ripLs ca'! r·nos1 

i:o enc~ se>'.'.LJI v'oicnce in cu1 

'vVc have 2 stuc)ent of c-:wscier:ticus young peop:c \Ni·10 w,:x:r a sa~c 
res:)cc:Li : community. 

'vVe wil · do whatr::ver it tcik2s to uc::Fc a sate, secure enviro·Ynent for all our s:udcnts. a110 
fo_c,u": a CtHu1e cf 1·es::iect anc: ':J:a··cu v;1!ues cm ow c:;rnp~1s. Our 
to 'er2ce oehavior that runs coume:- to these values. 

I ,;;rr: ('~1rnwaged t)y the a:u"~r:on tr .. e p1 ohlern of sexual es:;ai;I, en 

n::<:eived on a naticnai 'evel, as outined ir; the~ 1·ecent report 

will not 

(bttp;fl\IY..\!YYY.~Y.Y.hils:h.9_ll?._~,,ggy1?..i t e::;Lp.s_~~.Ld_Qn12,_\.J.9J~gQ_o"_e_qwlfil~sJJ]_Qcs/ re P9 . .LLQ"pgJ} 
fiorn !he \;\!hiLe House Task Fo1ce tCi Dn)tect (;:uJer1(S frcrr ';ex1:al AS'.',2UI'. Thie; i':, elf' 

irn1xr;:2nt step rowa1·cJ the < ; r:d~; cf cJeep cuitural chanze rl"z.t 'ii.JSt W<e plc1cc tc stop 

suc1·1 violer1ce on our· Ci:Hn;x:scs. 

B:..1:- t:1e actions taking puce are not near- ly enoL:zr1. W0 rnusr adciress this 

prcJhlcrn he'"e or1 our own car-1pus anc: vvi<:.hin CtH own cornrmn 'ty. We" must 1ai<e this 

opportunity to rise aLxJVe the fray ar·1d become readers int he fight to eraci'r-_ate sPxual 

vrolc:-icr::: fro1-n c0l iege c2r1puse';, l;r2t,irwi'1g witr1 our cwn. 

L.as:. we commissioned an P'-'t2!T1al review of our S2J'.l.•21 n·:isconciuct r:JOI cies and 
prntOCOIS, ;;wd WC r1ave already irr1p'errlC'ltCC1 or are ;ri :>10 proct.'S':> of 

t'1e r·crnrrm1em:Jc1r:ions of 111a1 repo:T (http://vpsa.uoregon.edu/wp-
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President Gottfredson's statement to media regarding sexual violence I President Page 4 of6 

Prncedures.pdflincluding staff to suppon: st.ucJenrs v1.:ho have 

that rcpor~. ava ·la;) r2 tor yc.1. 

f\Jext week, I 'Nii I :3nnoLTJ(e details of an additic;nal inc1epender•t 1·eview I r:we orc:ered 

jonly with our Athletic Director and V:ce President for Stuc1ent Affairs to examine our 

pr net ices !or pi-eventing ancl res1>:::,·1cJing co sexui.::ii violence. We wi:I appoint ar1 

i1v·Jerercie,·1; panel, whose charge vt!I include ar-1 ex,:irri:1aticJn rJf our <:>t:·Jle: ;c 

depamrem'::. reuu:trrr~nt oractices, anci a carnpu:: C:irna:r:0> :::rvt':"y to lear'1 rYY:;re about 
U1e culture of our cvm c_:;rnpu:; cmnrrunity vvhen it rnrne:> tC! ~Pxual vioh:>n ce anc: 
harassrnenr. 

Cu:- ::,tudrnts' sa 

i'l 

pr·iorlry. \:Ve r1avc) .:;tn:;ng 

ro make thc'n ';uongc:r stil 

is respectecJ; 

a"ir.J wher2 ·1c i·1sr::wce :::/ :,;e>;ual violence is toieraed, we wi'i r"'ot conside· it 

E:TOL,gf-i. 

ril i::: is a ciiffcult t'rTe for our for triOSC wilose lives r1C!V2 been 

affeccecJ by ',,exu0I violence. -'\Sa tmivf'r', ry, 'Ne vvi ll t:ak'~ thi :::. t!rne dS dr1 

tc; :11ake our G:impu:o, safer-. our ccT1•n,v1ity srronger. and our 'ntoierance cf 

scx.ucii violence 'r' .::my form clear· anci 

CAMPUS RESOUHCES 
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President Gottfredson's statement to media regarding sexual violence I President Page 5 of6 

News (http:/ /around.uoregoneclu/J WebrnniJ 

Events (http:/ /calendnr.11oregon.erlu/) (https://webrnnil.uoregon.eclu/) 

Maps (//uorngon eclu/rnaps) CanviJs (https.//canvas.uoregon.eclu/J 

Directions (//uoregon edu/clirections) DuckwelJ 

Cla~;s Schedule (https//cluckwetJ.uowgon mlu/J 

(http:/ /cla~;soc;.uoregon.eclu/) Find People 

Acadcrnic Calenclar (/ /uoregon. eclu/findpeopleJ 

(hrtp//wgi~;trar.uowgoru~clu/calenciars/ac<l{:lmtllm1ex (//uoregon.c?clu/azinclexJ 

UO Ubrarn!s 

(htt p://lil:Jrarv. uo rngon.ccl u/l 

RELATED RESOlJRCES 

Powering the Stnte's Econorny (http://uoregon eclu/irnpLtct) 

UO's Distinguic;hed Scholar:; (http://clistin.guisl1cclscholars.uoregon.ec1u/nocle/10J 

Rec;earcl:1 arnl Innovation [http://rc;~;carch.uorcgon.c;clu/J 

Officu of the; Prnvo;;t (http//provostuorcgon eclu/J 

UO Expurts (https/ /wmew;;.uorugon.cclu/orngcm expr,?rts) 

ContDct Us (/contact-us] 

Office of the President 

l2?l3 University of Oregon 

Eugene, OR 974031226 

P: 541-31JG-30J6 F 541-3'1l3-301'/ 

pres(4'uoregon.eclu (rnaiito:pres(L1n1oregon.eclu) 

CAHEERS (HTTP://HR.lJOREGON.EDU/JOBS/A VAILABLE-POSITIONSJ 
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President Gottfredson's statement to media regarding sexual violence I President Page 6 of6 

PRIVACY POLICY [HTTP://REGISTRARUOREGON.EDU/RECORDS ··PRIVACY) 

ABOUT (HTTP://UOREGONEDU/ABOUTJ 

FIND PEOPLE (HTTP://UOREGON.EDU/FINDPEOPLE/) 

[HTTP:!/UOREGON.EDU J 

,t; UNIVERSITY OF OREGON [HTTP://UOREGON.EDUJ ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. 

UO (University ot Oregon) p:oh1b1ts d1scnminat1on on tlie basis ot rar..e. color, sex , na11onal or ethnic origin. age. re!1g1on 

marital status disability, veteran status. sexual orien:a:1on. gender 1rJent1ty. ami gender express on in all programs. act:v1ries 

and e1nployrnent practices as reqwed by T:tle IX. other applicable !aws, and policies Rot<1!iat1on is µroh1bited by UO 

(Un1vers1ty ot Oregon) policy Ouestions may be refer-ed :o the T;tle IX Coorclinator Otfice of Affirmative l\ctior. "'"'Equal 

Opportunity or to t11e Office for C1v11 Rights Contact 'nfmrnation, relaterJ po!1c1es. and mrnp!aint procedures are listed on tile 

sta(emcrn of non-d scr:rnination (http://studentlife.uoregon.edu/nondiscrimination) 
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From: veralrud@oregonattorney.com 
Sent: Wednesday, May 28, 2014 I I :58 AM 
To: Douglas Park 
Subject: Student Conduct Matter-Dominic Artis 

Doug-
Mr. Artis agrees to proceed with the decision made by the university's neutral administrator 
rather than by panel, with the conditions set forth in your earlier offer. I understand the 
university has been trying to get the recording we've been discussing and would request 
those efforts continue for use in the decision making process. More on that later, but for 
now the panel hearing for Friday can be taken off as to Mr. Artis. I understand Mr .' K~~i~c' 
has made a similar decision. Regards, Greg Veralrud 

EXHIB IT C - Page l of 3 
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SPECIAL CHOICE OF RESOLUTION FORM 
Student Conduct and Community Standards 

University of Oregon 

Student Name: Damyean DaKethe Dotson Student ID#: RED,.\CTED 

Incident Date: March 09, 2014 Case Number: 00516-001-2014 

Description: You engage(f in sexual acts with a fellow stucfeiit withou(explfdt 
~~~~~~~~~~~Se-..~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Summary of Alleged Violations: 
1, Sexual Mlsconduat : Oregon Administrat iv~Rule 571-021-0120(3)(h) 
Sexual Misconduct A mission of the Student Conduct Code is to encourage 
good decision-making, personal integrity, and interpersonal behavior that Is 
cooperative rather than coercive and that respects the rights of others, Sexual 
misconduct violates these values, and is committed when a student engages 
in sexual behavior described in OAR 571-021-0105(30), OAR 
571-021 -0105(30) "Sexual Misconduct" means: (a) Unwanted Penetration is 
Penetration of another person, or causing the Penetration of another person, 
when one: (A) Does not first obtain Explicit Consent from that person; or (B) 
Knows or should have known the person was incapable of consent by reason 
of Mental Disorder, Mental Incapacitation, or Physical Helplessness. (b) 
Nonconsensual personal contact occurs when a student subjects another 
person to contact of a sexual nature when a reasonable person would know 
that such contact would cause emotional distress: (A) Without having first 
obtained Explicit Consent; or (B) When he or she knows or should have 
known the person was incapable of consent by reason of Mental Disorder, 
Mental Incapacitation. or Physical Helplessness. (c) Sexual advances, 
requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual 
nature that Interferes with work or academic performance because it has 
created an Intimidating, hostile, or degrading environment and would have 
such an.effect on a reasonable person of the alleged complainant's status 
when the conduct ls unwelcome and sufficiently severe or pervasive that it 
deprives that person of benefits of the University's educational environment. 

Students accused of violating the Student Conduct Code have a choice of 
how they can have their case heard. Sign below ONE choice: 

EXHIBIT C - Page 2 of 3 
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1. Speclal Administrative Conference: This option is a hearing with an 
administrator. If you select this option, the hearing can take place immediately 
afterward. In this type of hearing, the full range of sanctions are possible. All 
decisions made are fina l; you cannot appeal. Also, during this type of hearing, 
the administrator may refer you to the Restorative Justice program or Conflict 
Resolution Services in addition to or in substitution of sanctions. 

I affirm I have had the opportunity to consult w ith an adviser of my choosing. I 
_ . _. __ _ __ _ _ _al~o_uo.cter&tand thaLPY waiving my right to a pan~1_t1ear[".!gJ_gj_y~_U.~~ rjg~_t 

to have the accuser at the hearing with me. I agree to waive my right to an 
---------__,a~J''l1"J'>flle*a1-1, ""81'\lnd4-MI gl'fNive-peffflissiert-feHAe-f)ifeeteF--ef-Stl.-ldent Conffi!Gt-aAG----------­

Community Standards or his designee, to choose from the full range of 
University sanctions if he or the designee finds me responsible. These 
include suspension,(¢ ££ ft?n my academic 
transcript. .r,,;.p.I "'f GQ::t.. ..,,'01dl+e>; ~ ""r>p--.c.1r..:...? 

2. Panel Hearing: This option is a hearing with a panel made up of a mixture 
of four to five students, staff, and faculty. If you select this option, a hearing 
time' will be set 21-30 days later (or longer depending on term breaks and the 
discretion of the Director of SCCS). In this type of hearing, all University 
sanctions are possible, including suspension, expulsion, and negative 
notation on the transcript You or the complainant may appeal the Panel's 
decision on the limited bases allowed by the Student Conduct Code. 

Signature:------------------- Date: 

Students may have an advisor present with them during the hearing, but it is 
not required . Indicate your advisor situation with initials: 

1. I am not here with an advisor nor do I wish to have one. 

2. I am here with an advisor:-----------

EXHIBIT C - Page 3 of 3 
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CONFIDENTIAL RECORD 

Kf..lJ . .t\\.., It.. " 
Name: Dominic Jordan Artis UO ID: __ IL __ E-mail: REDACTED 

Gender: Male DOB: 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. 0051G-003-?014 on Marct19, 201412·00 am 

DATE/TIME OF INCIDENT: J\.TARCH 9, 2014 
12:00AM 

CASE NUMBER: 00516-003-2014 

EXHIBIT D - Page I of 6 

Kr.U.'\L. It. ' 

n. Class: 5optm rnore 

SOCIAL MISCONDUCT (RESIDENCE HALL, CLASSROOM 
BEHAVIOR, ETC.) 

INCIDENT STATUS:RESPONSIBLE 
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0 UNJ VERS!TY or 01\EGO~ 

Decision Letter 

June 20, 2014 

Dominic Jordan Artis 
ID number:1 R~DACJ~ 
uo email : RE.O . .\CTEO 

Regarding Case: 00516-003-2014 

Dear Dominic: 

The University of Oregon has resolved a complaint(s) regarding your reported behavior on March 09, 
2014 with the following incident description: You engaged in sexual acts with a fellow student without 
receiving explicit consent. 

I have found you responsible for the following charges: 

1. Sexual Misconduct : Oregon Administrative Rule 571-021 -0120(3)(hJ Sexual Misconduct. A mission 
of the Student Conduct Code is to encourage good decision-making, personal integrity, and 
interpersonal behavior that is cooperative rather than coercive and that respects the rights of others. 
Sexual misconduct violates these values, and is committed when a student engages in sexual behavior 
described in OAR 571-021-0105(30). OAR 571-021-0105(30J "Sexual Misconduct" means: (a) 
Unwanted Penetration is Penetration of another person, or causing the Penetration of another person, 
when one: (A) Does not first obtain Explicit Consent from that person; or (BJ Knows or should have 
known the person was incapable of consent by reason of Mental Disorder, Mental Incapacitation, or 
Physical Helplessness. (b) Nonconsensual personal contact occurs when a student subjects another 
person to contact of a sexual nature when a reasonable person would know that such contact would 
cause emotional distress: (A) Without having first obtained Explicit Consent; or (BJ When he or she 
knows or should have known the person was incapable of consent by reason of Mental Disorder, 
Mental Incapacitation, or Physical Helplessness. (c) Sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and 
other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature that interferes with work or academic performance 
because it has created an intimidating, hostile, or degrading environment and would have such an effect 
on a reasonable person of the alleged complainant's status when the conduct is unwelcome and 
sufficiently severe or pervasive that it deprives that person of benefits of the University's educational 
environment. 

As a result, I am imposing the following sanctions: 

1. Suspension 
You are suspended from the University of Oregon for a period of at least four years and until the 
complainant is no longer enrolled or employed at the University of Oregon but for not more than a 
period of ten years. 

You will be may be eligible to regain your status as a student on June 20, 2018 upon review of the 
complainants status with the University of Oregon. 

A student who has been suspended from the University shall not be permitted to participate in any 
University Sponsored Activity or allowed to reside on University Premises during the period the 
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student is suspended. 

You may not come on to University Premises without explicit permission from the 
Director of Student Conduct and Community Standards or his designee. 

IMPORTANT NOTE: It is the student's responsibility to withdraw from classes for periods the student is 
not allowed to be on campus. 

2. Negative Notation on Transcript 
A notation will be placed on your University of Oregon transcript that reads, "Student Conduct 
Violation". 

Your student conduct record (different from your academic record) will indicate your responsibility 
(and/or lack of responsibility) for the above charges for five years after the date of the incident unless 
suspension , expulsion , or negative notation were imposed. Your student conduct record is only 
released by your express waiver (usually on an application to a scholarship, study abroad program, 
graduate school, etc.) or to other University staff/faculty on a strict need-to-know basis. 

Your student account will be billed with an administrative fee , which covers the cost of administering the 
program and maintaining your records. 

I hope you have learned and will continue to learn much from this experience. Please feel welcome to 
ask questions and seek help from me or my office in the future . 

Sincerely, 

Sandy Weintraub, Director, Student Conduct and Community Standards 

541-346-3216 
chicora@uoregon .edu 

CC: Chicora Martin, Doug Park, Sam Hiii 
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0 
Decision Letter 

June 20. 2014 

Damyean DaKethe Dotson 
ID number~ ~-f~A-c~:Ef? · 
uo email: , . REDAC:TED 

Regarding Case: 00516-001-2014 

Dear Damyean Dotson: 

The University of Oregon has resolved a complaint(s) regarding your reported behavior on March 09, 
2014 with the following incident description: You engaged in sexual acts with a fellow student without 
receiving explicit consent 

I have found you responsible for the following charges: 

1. Sexual Misconduct : Oregon Administrative Rule 571-021-0120(3)(h) Sexual Misconduct. A mission 
of the Student Conduct Code is to encourage good decision-making, personal integrity, and 
interpersonal behavior that is cooperative rather than coercive and that respects the rights of others. 
Sexual misconduct violates these values, and is committed when a student engages in sexual behavior 
described in OAR 571-021-0105(30) . OAR 571-021-0105(30) "Sexual Misconduct" means: (a) 
Unwanted Penetration is Penetration of another person, or causing the Penetration of another person, 
when one: (A) Does not first obtain Explicit Consent from that person; or (B) Knows or should have 
known the person was incapable of consent by reason of Mental Disorder, Mental Incapacitation, or 
Physical Helplessness. (b) Nonconsensual personal contact occurs when a student subjects another 
person to contact of a sexual nature when a reasonable person would know that such contact would 
cause emotional distress: (A) Without having first obtained Explicit Consent; or (B) When he or she 
knows or should have known the person was incapable of consent by reason of Mental Disorder, 
Mental Incapacitation, or Physical Helplessness. (c) Sexual advances, requests for sexual favors. and 
other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature that interferes with work or academic performance 
because it has created an intimidating, hostile, or degrading environment and would have such an effect 
on a reasonable person of the alleged complainant's status when the conduct is unwelcome and 
sufficiently severe or pervasive that it deprives that person of benefits of the University's educational 
environment. 

As a result, I am imposing the following sanctions: 

1. Suspension 
You are suspended from the University of Oregon for a period of at least four years and until the 
complainant is no longer enrolled or employed at the University of Oregon but for not more than a 
period of ten years. 

You will be may be eligible to regain your status as a student on June 20, 2018 upon review of the 
complainants status with the University of Oregon. 

A student who has been suspended from the University shall not be permitted to participate in any 
University Sponsored Activity or allowed to reside on University Premises during the period the 
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student is suspended. Student may not come on to University Premises without explicit permission 
from the Director of Student Conduct and Community Standards or his designee. 

IMPORT ANT NOTE: It is the student's responsibility to withdraw from classes for periods the student is 
not allowed to be on campus . 

2. Negative Notation on Transcript 
A notation will be placed on your University of Oregon transcript that reads, "Student Conduct Violation". 

Your student conduct record (different from your academic record) will indicate your responsibility 
(and/or lack of responsibility) for the above charges for five years after the date of the incident unless 
suspension, expulsion, or negative notation were imposed. Your student conduct record is only 
released by your express waiver (usually on an application to a scholarship, study abroad program, 
graduate school, etc.) or to other University staff/faculty on a strict need-to-know basis. 

Your student account will be billed with an administrative fee, which covers the cost of administering the 
program and maintaining your records. 

I hope you have learned and will continue to learn much from this experience. Please feel welcome to 
ask questions and seek help from me or my office in the future. 

Sincerely, 

Sandy Weintraub, Director, Student Conduct and Community Standards 
541-346-3216 
chicora@uoregon.edu 

CC: Chicora Martin , Sam Hill , Doug Park 
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G r egory E. Veralrud 
Lindsay H. Fowler 

VERALRUD & FOWLER 
ATTORNEYS 

975 Oak Street, Suite 625 
Eu gene, Oregon 97401-3156 

Telep hone (54 1) 345-3333 
Fax (541 ) 342- 1908 

October 8, 2014 

Director, Oregon Dept. of Admin. Services 
State Services Division 
Risk Management 
Executive Building 
155 Cottage St N.E., U20 
Salem, OR 97301 

and via fax to 503-373-7337 
and via e-mail to risk.management@state.or.us 

Douglas YS Park, Asst. General Counsel 
University of Oregon 
219 Johnson Hall 
1226 University of Oregon 
Eugene, OR 97403 

and via fax to 541-346-6110 
and via e-mail to dougpark@uoregon.edu 

Re: Notice of Claims by Dominic Artis vs . University of Oregon and 
Various Administrative Officials 

Dear ODAS and Mr. Park: 

Willi am F. Frye 
( 1929- 1988) 

In compliance with ORS 30.275, notice is hereby given of claims for damages on behalf 
of Dominic Artis against the University of Oregon and its departments, officers, employ­
ees and/or agents resulting in a course of conduct on the part of the aforementioned 
parties beginning April 10, 2014, with the University's "emergency suspension" and end- . 
ing on or about June 17, 2014, at which time the University issued a suspension follow­
ing University Student Conduct Code hearing. 

State law claims against the University and its departments, officers, employees and/or 
agents arise out of breach of contract, slander, defamation and intentional infliction of 
emotional distress on the part of the aforementioned and/or the University's vicarious 
liability for those wrongful actions. 

Federal law claims against the University and its departments, officers, employees 
and/or agents arise out of a violation of Mr. Artis' civil rights under 42 USC §1981 and 
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§1983, the First, Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments to the U.S. Constitution, including 
deprivation of due process, deprivation of the right to freedom of association , deliberate 
indifference to Mr. Artis' civil and constitutional rights and all policies, customs and prac­
tices that allowed such violations to occur. 

Insofar as the claimant is aware, the time, place and circumstances giving rise to the 
claims are as follows: 

On or about March 9, 2014 , Mr. Artis attended a party with other friends and fellow 
Oregon Duck basketball teammates. At the party Mr. Artis engaged in consensual sex-
ual activities with . REn ,\ c Trn as did other attendees at the party. Further sexual 
contact between Mr. Artis and REDACTED occurred later in the evening and in the 
early morning hours of the following day at Mr. Artis' apartment. Those acts were con­
sensual as well. 

In the days following ,· REDACTED characterized what had been patently consen-
sual sexual contact as sexual assault and caused her complaint to be submitted to law 
enforcement and eventually to the University of Oregon, including the above-referenced 
officials. 

A subsequent police investigation led to a conclusion by the Lane County District Attor­
ney's office that there was insufficient evidence to prosecute the case. 

The police investigation generated police reports that underscored the consensual na­
ture of the activities. Those reports were made known to the University and its above­
referenced employees and agents. 

University officials, including the then University of Oregon President, made public 
statements both implicitly and explicitly declaiming Mr. Artis as a sexual assaulter, a 
rapist and a criminal, thus slandering and defaming Mr. Artis. 

During the course of the investigation, although the emergency suspension of the Uni­
versity was lifted with respect to Mr. Artis pending a University Student Conduct Code 
hearing, he was (1) first suspended from the basketball team, then (2) dismissed from 
the basketball team , and then (3) notified that his scholarship was terminated. These 
actions on the part of the University and the above-referenced officials were without 
cause and in violation of Mr. Artis' civil and contractual rights. 

The University then asserted violation of the University Student Conduct Code, claiming 
non-consensual sexual contact as a violation of that code. 

In the run-up to the University Student Conduct Code hearing, the University denied Mr. 
Artis' requests for: 
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a. A contested case hearing in accordance with the Oregon Administrative Pro­
cedures Act because Mr. Artis contended that the procedures set forth in the Student 
Conduct Code were deficient and denied him due process of law. 

b. The issuance of subpoenas for witnesses who would provide evidence and 
testimony supporting Mr. Artis' contention that he had committed no violation of law or 
Student Conduct Code and that REDACTED .'s credibility was at issue. 

c. Names and contact information of witnesses who the University of Oregon in­
terviewed and relied upon in bringing the Student Conduct Code violation claim against 
Mr. Artis. 

d. Copies of the University's Title IX investigator's report (Mr. Artis ' counsel was 
allowed to view but not have the document, with significant parts blacked out and un­
available to Mr. Artis or his counsel). 

Student Condct Code Hearing 

The University Student Conduct Code hearings process at the time offered Mr. Artis a 
choice of hearing by a panel (the panel consisting of University of Oregon personnel, 
student representatives and administrators chosen by the University) or an administra­
tive hearing in front of the Dean of Student Conduct who would be the sole decider. 
The University coerced Mr. Artis into waiving his panel hearing by threatening expulsion 
as a remedy if he sought the panel hearing and promising to remove expulsion as an 
option if he had his case decided by the Dean of Student Conduct, a hearing which did 
not allow for cross-examination of witnesses or determination by an arguably less partial 
fact finder. 

The administrative process that the University set up for Student Conduct Code viola­
tion hearings was constitutionally deficient and denied Mr. Artis due process. The Uni­
versity ignored its own rules with respect to its ability to issue subpoenas (Mr. Artis had 
no power to issue said subpoenas as the Student Conduct Code then read), and the 
University intentionally or recklessly frustrated Mr. Artis ' ability to present evidence and 
to defend against the fallacious allegations. 

On June 17, 2014, the University conducted the final administrative hearing with all the 
deficiencies, violations and deprivations of rights set forth above and issued a suspen­
sion to Mr. Artis for up to ten years, effectively and for all intents and purposes expelling 
him from the University anyway. 

The Dean of Student Conduct, aided by University counsel, were either explicitly or im­
plicitly directed by superiors within the University to make a finding that Mr. Artis had 
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violated the Student Conduct Code or, in the alternative , were so influenced by the 
statements and comments of their superiors, including the President of the University , 
that a fair and impartial decision-making process could never have occurred and did 
not. 

Substantial and compelling evidence of the consensual nature of Mr. Artis' sexual con-
tact with. REDACTED , was willfully ignored . 

A similar contention that evidence was ignored in the arrival of the finding of culpability 
on Mr. Artis' part was also evident in the Title IX investigative report issuing find ings of 
fact upholding the allegation which completely ignored substantial contrad ictory evi­
dence that supported the consensual nature of Mr. Artis' sexual contact with Ms. •<r-~~ \.. ' : 
and contained ample evidence questioning her credibil ity and contradicting her subse­
quent assertions that the encounter had not been consensual. 

Mr. Artis has been severely damaged by the University's conduct as referenced above. 
Prior to his suspension from the University of Oregon basketball team and subsequent 
removal and withdrawal of scholarship, Mr. Artis had been, in all respects, compliant 
with his agreement with the University regarding his efforts as a basketball player to 
support the scholarship. He was subjected to ridicule and hostility as a result of the 
University's slanderous and defamatory remarks as referenced above. His educational 
plans and abil ity to continue his career as a collegiate basketball player have been all 
but terminated . He has suffered financial loss, as well as great humiliation, embarrass­
ment and vilification in the public eye. The damage to his reputation as a result of the 
University's outrageous actions is immeasurable. 

Correspondence concerning this cla im may be sent care of this office . 

GV:tlk 
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Sincerely, 

Isl Greg Veralrud 

Greg Veralrud 
Attorney for Dominic Artis 
975 Oak, Suite 625 
Eugene, OR 97401 
541-345-3333 
Fax 541-342-1908 
E-mail: veralrud@oregonattorney.com 
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Shaun S. McCrea 

5414856847 

McCREA, P.C. 
Attorneys at Law 

1147 High Street 
Eugene, OR 97401 

FACSIMILE TRANSMITTAL 

T-970 POOOl/0006 f-516 

TELEPHONE 
(541) 485-1182 

FAX 
(541) ·185-6847 

DATE: October 9, 2014 NUMBER OF PAGES: 6 
(Including Transmittal page) 

Attention: Douglas YS Park, Asst. General Counsel 

Facsimile No. (541) 346-6110 

PERSON TO CONTACT IN CASE OF SENDING/RECIVING PROBLEMS: 

NAME: Shaun S. McCrea 

MESSAGE: Notice of Tort Claim by Damyean Dotson vs. University of Oregon 

and Various Administrative Officials 

Thanks 

Shaun S. McCrea 

PERSON TO CONTACT IN CASE OF RECEIVING PROBLEMS: Shaun or Kelsie 

CONFIDENl'IALffY NOTICE: The documents accompanying this facsimi le transmission contain information 
that is confidential, proprietary, and leg~lly priv!!egcd. Such inform;11ion is mtended only for the use of 
individual or entity named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that my 
disclosure, copying. or distribution, or the taking ol any action in reliance on facsirr>Jle transmission is strictly 
probbited. If you have received this facsimile transmission in error, please notify us immedia!ely by telephone 
to ;mange for return of the original documents to us. TharL\; you. 
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McCREA, P.C. 

Robert J. McCrea 
Shaun S. McCrea 

Attorneys at Law 
1147 High Street 

Eugene, OR 97401-3270 

October 9, 2014 

Director, Oregon Dept. of Admin. Services 
State Services Division 
Risk Management 
Executive Building 
155 Cottage St. N.IE., U20 
Salem, OR 97301 

and via fax to 503-373-7337 
and via e-mall to rlsk.management@state.or.us 

Douglas YS Park, Asst. General Counsel 
University of Oregon 
219 Johnson Hall 
1226 University of Oregon 
Eugene, OR 97403 

and via fax to 541-346-611 O 
and via e-mail to dougpark@uoregon.edu 

T-970 P0002/0006 F-516 

TELEPHONE 
(541) 485-1182 

FAX 
(541) 485-6847 

Re: Notice of Tort Claim by Damyean Dotson vs. University of Oregon and 
Various Administrative Officials 

Dear ODAS and Mr. Park, 

In compliance with ORS 30.275, notice is hereby given of claims for damages on behalf of 
Damyean Dotson against the University of Oregon and Its departments, officers·, 
employees and/or age.nts resulting in a course of conduct on the part of the 
aforementioned parties beginning April 1 O, 2014, with the University's "emergency 
suspension" and ending on or about June 17, 2014, at which time the University issued a 
suspension following University Student Conduct Code hearing. 

State law claims against the University and its departments, officers, employees and/or 
agents arise out of breach of contract, slander, defamation and intentional infliction of 

Notice of Tort Claim 
October 9, 2014 
Page 1 
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emotional distress on the part of he aforementioned and/or the University's vicarious 
liability for those wrongful actions. 
Federal law claims against the University and Its departments, officers; employees and/or 
agents arise out of a violation of Mr. Dotson' civil rights under 42 USC § 1981 and § 1983, 
the First, Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments to the U.S. Constitution, including deprivation 
of due process, deprivation of the right to freedom of association, deliberate indifference to 
Mr. Dotson' civil and constitutional rights and all policies, customs and practices that 
allowed such vlolatlons to occur. 

Insofar as the claimant is aware, the time, place and circumstances giving rise to the 
claims are as follows : 

On or about March 9, 2014 Mr. Dotson attended a party with other friends and fellow 
Oregon Duck basketball teammates. At the party Mr. Dotson engaged in consensual 
sexual activities with[ REDACTE D I as did other attendees at the party. Further 
consensual contact between another teammate andl REDACT ED !occurred later in the 
evening and in the early morning hours of the following day at that teammate's apartment. 
Those acts were consensual as well. 

In the days following ~ REDACTED !characterized what had been patently consensual 
sexual contact as sexual assault and caused her complaint to be submitted to law 
enforcement and eventually to the University of Oregon, including the above-referenced 
offlclals. 

A subsequent police investigation led to a conclusion by the Lane County District 
Attorney's office that there was Insufficient evidence to prosecute the case. 

The police Investigation generated police reports that underscored the consensual nature 
of the activities. Those reports were made know to the University and Its above- · 
referenced employees and agents. 

University officials, including the then University of Oregon President, made public 
statements both lmpllcltly and explicitly declalmlng Mr. Dotson as a sexual assaulter, a 
rapist and a criminal, thus slan~ering and defaming Mr. Dotson. · 

During the course of the Investigation, although the emergency suspension of the 
University was lifted with respect to Mr. Dotson pending a University Student Conduct 
Code hearing, he was (1) first suspended from the basketball team, then (2) dismissed 
f.rom the basketball team, and then (3) notified that his scholarship was terminated. These 
actions on the part of the University and the above-referenced officials were without cause 
and in violation of Mr. Dotson's civil and contractual rights. · 

Notice of Tort Claim 
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The University then asserted violation of the University Student Conduct Code, claiming 
non-consensual sexual contact as a violation of that code. 

In the run·up the University Student Conduct Code hearing, the University denied Mr. 
Dotson's requests for: 

a) a contested case hearing in accordance with the Oregon Administrative 
Procedures Act because Mr. Dotson contended that the procedures set fourth in the 
Student Conduct Code were deficient and denied him due process of law. 

b) The Issuance of subpoenas for witnesses who would provide evidence and 
testimony supporting Mr. Dotson' contention that he had committed no violation of law 
or Student Conduct Code and that / REDACTED j's credibility was at Issue. 

c) Names and contact information of witnesses who the University of Oregon 
interviewed and relied upon in bringing the Student Conduct Code violation claim 
against Mr. Dotson. 

d) Coples of the University's Title IX investigator's report (Mr. Dotson' counsel 
was allowed to view but not have the document, with significant parts blacked out and 
unavailable to Mr. Dotson or his cou'nsel). 

Student Conduct Code Hearing 

The University Student Conduct Code hearings process at the time offered Mr. Dotson 
a choice of hearing by a panel (the panel consisting of University of Oregon personnel, 
student representatives and administrato'rs chosen by the University) or and 
administrative hearing ln front of the Dean of Student Conduct who would be the sole 
decider. The University coerced Mr. Dotson to waive his panel hearing by threatening 
expulsion as a remedy lf he sought the panel hearing and promising to remove 
expulsion as an option if he had his case decided by the Dean of Student Conduct, a 
hearing . which did not allow 1 or cross-examination of witnesses or determination by an 
arguably less partial fact finder. 

The administrative process that the University set up for the Student Conduct Code 
violation hearings was constitutionally deficient and denied Mr. Dotson due process. 
The University Ignored its own rules with respect to !ts ability to Issue subpoenas (Mr. 
Dotson had no power to issue said subpoenas as the Student Conduct Code then 
read), and the University intentionally or recklessly frustrated Mr. Dotson' ability to 
present evidence and to defend against the fallacious allegations. 

On June 17, 2014, the University conducted the final administrative hearing with all the 
deficiencies, violations and deprivations of rights set forth above and issued a 
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sustention of Mr. Dotson for up to ten years, effectively and for all Intents and purposes 
expelling him from the University anyway. 

The Dean of Student Conduct, aided by University counsel, were either expllcltly or 
implicitly directed by superiors within the University to make a finding that Mr. Dotson 
had violated the Student Conduct Code or, ln the alternatlve, were so Influenced by the 
statements and comments of their superiors, including the President of the Unive.rsity, 
that a fair and Impartial declslon-maklng process could never have occurred and did 
not. 

Substantial and comoellino evidence of the consensual nature of Mr. Dotson' sexual 
contact with RrnAcTrn was willfully ignored. 

A similar contention that evidence was ignored in the arrival of the finding of cu!pabitity 
on Mr. Dotson' part was also evident In the Title XI investigative report issuing findings 
of fact upholding the allegation which completely ignored substantial contradictory 
evidence that supported the consensual nature of Mr. Dotson' sexual contact with Ms . 
. ru. ~;~' ' and contained ample evidence questioning her credibility and contradicting her 
subsequent assertions that eh encounter had not been consensual. 

Mr. Dotson has been severely damaged by the University's conduct as ref ere need 
above. Prior to his suspension from the University of Oregon basketball team and 
subsequent removal and withdrawal of scholarship, Mr. Dotson had been, in all 
respects, compliant with his agreement with the University regarding his efforts as a 
basketball player to support the scholarship. He was subjected to ridicule and hostility 
as a result of the University's slanderous and defamatory remarks as referenced 
above. His educational plans and ability to continue his career as a collegiate · 
basketball player have been all but terminated. He has suffered financial loss, as well 
as great humiliation, embarrassment and vilification In the public eye. The damage to 
his reputation as a result of the University's outrageous actions is immeasurable. 
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Correspondence concerning this claim may be sent care of this office. 

SMc/kg 
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Sincerely, 

McCREA, P .C. 

/F s 'tc,,., 
Shaun S. McCrea 
Attorney for Damyean Dotson 
1147 High Street 
Eugene, OR 97401 
541-485-1182 
Fax 541·485·6847 
E-mail: shaun@mccreapc.com 
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l hereby certify that l served the foregoing declaration of Lisa Thornton in support 

of Defendants' motion to dismi ss on: 

Mr. Brian Michaels 
259 East Fifth Avenue, Suite 300-D 
Eugene. Oregon 97401 
Telephone: (54 1) 687-0578 
E-mai l: hrian@ brianmichaelslaw.com 

Mr. Alex B. Spiro (admitted pro hac vice) 
Brafman & Associates, P.C. 
767 Third Avenue, 26th Floor 
New York, New York 10017 
Telephone: (2 12) 750-7800 
E-mai l: aspi re<r1}braflaw.com 

Attorneys for Plaintif)~· Dominic Arris and 
Damyean Dotson 

by the follO\ving indicated method or methods on the date set forth below: 

~ CM/ECF sys tem transmiss ion. 

D E-mail. (Courtesy copy.) 

D Facsimile communication device. 

D First-class mail, posta ge prepaid. 

D Ha nd-delivery. 

D Overnight courier, delivery prepaid. 
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DATED this 2nd day of May, 2016. 

Certificate of Service 

OfAttorneys for Defendants 

MILL.ER NAS H GRAH AM & DUN!\ LLP 
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